
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
February 25, 2013 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Brad Allison, Altadena Valley Presbyterian Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 

a. Business of the Month 
7. Councilors’ Reports 

a. Board of Education Upcoming Vacancy – John Henley 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
9. Approval Of Minutes –February 11, 2013 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 4405 – A Resolution Accepting A Proposal From The Regional 
Planning Commission Of Greater Birmingham For Planning Assistance In The 
Evaluation Of A 1.4 Mile Multi-Modal Trail Along The Cahaba River And Old Overton 
Road  (Public Hearing) 

11. Resolution Number 4406 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Hire Six (6) 
New Police Officers And To Promote Six (6) Existing Officers To The Rank Of Sergeant 
To Fill Six (6) Desk Sergeant Positions (Public Hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 4407 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Hire Five (5) 
School Resource Officers (“SRO’s”) For Added Security In The Vestavia Hills School 
System  (Public Hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2434 - An Ordinance Transferring The Mayor’s Administrative 
Duties Authorized In City Ordinances To The City Manager  (Public Hearing) 

New Business 

14. Resolution Number 4408 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Computers For The City 
Of Vestavia Hills  (Public Hearing) 



15. Resolution Number 4410 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With Barry Davis Architects P.C. For Architectural Services Of 
A Proposed Garage/Maintenance Facility At Wald Park 

16. Resolution Number 4411 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With Alabama Department Of Transportation For Jefferson 
County Project Number; NH-HSIP-003(574) For Improvements Along SR-3 (US-31) 
From Shades Crest Road To Hollywood Boulevard 

17. Resolution Number 4414 – A Resolution Authorizing Change Orders For Veterans 
Landscape At Patchwork Farms 

18. Ordinance Number 2435 – An Ordinance To Amend Ordinance Number 2323; To 
Authorize And Direct A Modification To The Real Estate Sales Contract By And 
Between The City Of Vestavia Hills, As “Seller” And NSH Corp. As Purchaser” And To 
Authorize And Direct The Execution And Delivery Of A Sanitary Sewer Easement To 
Jefferson County, Alabama 

19. Ordinance Number 2436 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Demolition, 
Razing And Removal Of A Dilapidated Single-Family Dwelling Situated On The 
Patchwork Farm Property At 4609 Old Looney Mill Road In The City Of Vestavia Hills 
Sometimes Referred To As The “Thuss Farmhouse” 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

20. Resolution Number 4412 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With New World Systems To Establish Hardware And Software 
For A “Stand-Alone” System For The City After Separating From Homewood   (Public 
Hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

21. Resolution Number 4413 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Five (5) Chevrolet Tahoes For The Newly Hired School Resource Officers (SRO’s)  
(Public Hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 4415 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement For Legal Services For The Purchase Of Property Development 
Of A New Municipal Center  (Public Hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2437 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Purchase Agreement For Property Located 1034 Montgomery 
Highway  (Public Hearing) 



24. Resolution Number 4416 – A Resolution Approving Additional Inspection Services For 
Construction Of Healthy Way Entrance And Bridge  (Public Hearing) 

25. Resolution Number 4417 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Take All 
Actions Necessary To Proceed With The Demolition Of The Structures Located At 3363 
Mountainside Road  (Public Hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 4418 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Metal Detectors And Retain Two Security Officers For Municipal Court Security  (Public 
Hearing) 

27. Citizens Comments  
28. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

FEBRUARY 11, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
      Terry Ray, Fire Dept. Battalion Chief 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Mark Salter, Fleet Manager 
 
 Invocation was given by Steve West, St. Mark United Methodist Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• None. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Robertson introduced Marc Thompson and Anthony Kamburis from CDG 
Engineering to explain the City’s requests for ATRIP funding.  They explained 
the City’s request for an 80/20 split on projects on Columbiana Road, Rocky 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 2 
 

Ridge Road and Overton Road.  These requests would have to be considered by 
multiple jurisdictions if awarded, including Jefferson County. 

• Mr. Robertson stated that there will be a Military Family Network meeting on 
February 17 at the Civic Center. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• None. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending January 2013.  He 
read and explained the balances of the report. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the January 28, 2013 (Regular Meeting) and January 31, 2013 
(Special Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the January 28, 

2013 (Regular Meeting) and January 31, 2013 (Special Meeting) and 
approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  
Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – abstained 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4396 

Resolution Number 4396 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Pay Off 
A Lease For A 2012 Chevrolet Tahoe And Declaring Said Vehicle As 
Surplus To Allow The Sale And/Or Salvage Of Said Vehicle  (Public 
Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4396 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that one of the City’s Tahoes was involved in an 
accident.  The damage to the vehicle exceeded the value of the vehicle and it has been 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 3 
 

deemed as totaled.  The lease on the vehicle needs to be paid out so that a salvage title 
may be obtained and the vehicle sold. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to whether or not the vehicle would be replaced 
immediately, if the payment would be derived from Capital funds, etc. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing.  There 
being no further discussion, the Mayor called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4397 

Resolution Number 4397 – A Resolution Changing And Adopting A Logo For The 
City Of Vestavia Hills  (Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4397 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Brian Wolfe, Chairman of the Market Street Implementation Committee, 
presented this request to adopt a standard logo for the City.  He explained this was a part 
of the recommendation from the Market Street Study to begin standardizing and 
“branding” the community.  The logo has been adopted by the Chamber and is requesting 
the City to adopt it also.  He explained the background of the development of the logo, 
including feedback and study from several focus groups. 
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the previous versions of the proposed logo, the 
present logo, the approval and recommendation from the Implementation Committee, etc. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he noticed the incorporation date of 
1950 was removed from the logo. 
 
 Karen Odle, Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce, stated there is some proposed 
signage that will be following this request.  Those signs will bear the 1950 incorporation 
date. 
 
 There being no one else present to address the Council concerning this issue, the 
Mayor closed the public hearing.  There being no further discussion, the Mayor called for 
the question. 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 4 
 

 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4398 

Resolution Number 4398 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For SMT 
LLC, D/B/A Sol Azteca For The On-Premise Sale Of 020 – Restaurant 
Retail Liquor, Tomas Sarabia Martinez, Executive  (Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4398 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this is a license transfer for the Sol Azteca 
restaurant due to a change in ownership. 
 
 Tomas Sarabia was present in regard to this request.  He explained that he 
purchased the restaurant from a family meeting and will carry on the tradition of the Sol 
Azteca menu.   
 
 Chief Rary stated that his department has reviewed the applications and found no 
problems.   
 
 Mr. Sharp asked about the plans to expand the parking lot.  Mr. Sarabia indicated 
he was unaware of any expansion plans. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing.  There 
being no further discussion, the Mayor called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4399 

Resolution Number 4399 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement With Berney Office Solutions For Print 
Management 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 5 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4399 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution authorizes him to execute an 
agreement with Berney for centralized printer maintenance.  He explained the terms of 
the agreement and stated projections are that the City would see a savings of 
approximately $400 per month in the cost of printing.  He stated that the funding for this 
request was already approved in the budget. 
 
 Beth Lightsey, Berney Office Solutions, was present in regard to this request and 
answered questions from the City Council. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4400 

Resolution Number 4400 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For A Cardiac 
Monitor/Defibrillator 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4400 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that bids were invited for a cardiac monitor/defibrillator.  
Recommendation from the Chief is to accept the lowest bid received. 
 
 Chief Terry Ray was present to explained the recommendation and stated that the 
next request is to declare the older equipment as surplus to be used as a trade-in for a 
discount on the new equipment. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4401 

Resolution Number 4401 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As 
Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4401 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 6 
 

 Mr. Robertson stated that Chief Ray just explained this equipment is no longer 
supported by the manufacturer and will be traded in on the new equipment. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4402 

Resolution Number 4402 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement With Alabama Power Company For 
The Installation, Operation And Maintenance Of A Traffic Signal At 
The Intersection Of Cahaba River Road, Blue Lake Drive And 
Healthy Way 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4402 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that this agreement has been discussed previously and was 
required for the intersection of the new Healthy Way.  There is no funding commitment 
with this agreement, only agreeing to installation and maintenance of the light. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that Jefferson County required the signalization of this 
intersection. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4403 

Resolution Number 4403 – A Resolution Authorizing The Filing With ADECA For 
QECB Bonds And Reimbursement From The City From The 
Proceeds For Energy Conservation 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4403 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that this request is for ADECA to allocate some bonds for 
energy efficient lighting to the City at a better interest rate than financing.  This money 
would be used for the Trane proposal to replace all the lighting at the City’s athletic 
fields. 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 7 
 

 
 Heyward Hosch was present to explain the details of the bonds, the terms, etc.  He 
explained this request is not binding upon the Council nor does it approve the Trane 
contract. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the funding options for the Trane contract; the bonding 
terms, payment terms and options should the bonding request not materialize. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of 
February 25, 2013 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4404 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into A Guaranteed Energy Cost Savings Agreement With Trane US, Inc.  
(Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4405 – A Resolution Accepting A Proposal From The Regional 
Planning Commission Of Greater Birmingham For Planning Assistance In The 
Evaluation Of A 1.4 Mile Multi-Modal Trail Along The Cahaba River And Old 
Overton Road  (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4406 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Hire Six 
(6) New Police Officers And To Promote Six (6) Existing Officers To The Rank Of 
Sergeant To Fill Six (6) Desk Sergeant Positions (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4407 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Hire Five 
(5) School Resource Officers (“SRO’s”) For Added Security In The Vestavia Hills 
School System  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2434 - An Ordinance Transferring The Mayor’s Administrative 
Duties Authorized In City Ordinances To The City Manager  (Public Hearing) 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

Martha Cook, 1341 Branchwater Lane, thanked the Council for adopting the new 
City logo. 

 
David Russell, Birmingham Alabama, asked when the Council would consider the 

proposed Resolution in support of Cooper Green Hospital.  He advised the Council that 
he would send additional information regarding the funding of Cooper Green. 



City Council Minutes 
February 11, 2013, 

Page 8 
 

 
Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, reported a problem with some damages 

from utilities which have been done and not fixed.  He stated that the City was notified of 
the problems but the time it took to get the corrections done was a cause for concern. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:17 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. 

Ammons seconded the motion.  Roll call vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes  Motion carried; meeting adjourned. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4405 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A PROPOSAL FROM THE 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION OF GREATER 
BIRMINGHAM FOR PLANNING ASSISTANCE IN THE 
EVALUATON OF A 1.4 MILE MULTI-MODAL TRAIL ALONG 
THE CAHABA RIVER AND OLD OVERTON ROAD 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The proposal submitted by the Regional Planning Commission of Greater 

Birmingham (“RPCGB”) for planning assistance in evaluation of a 1.4 mile 

multi-modal trail along the Cahaba River and Old Overton Road at a cost not 

to exceed $49,284.41 with a local match of 20% or $9,856.88 is hereby 

accepted; and 

2. A copy of said proposal is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4405 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4405 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





 Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham  

Project City of Vestavia Hills, Cahaba-Liberty Trail - APPLE Project
City/County Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama
Description Traffic Study/Project Feasibility Assessment

Scope of Work Planning
 Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham

Fee Proposal 

PERSONNEL COST
Man-Days  x  Daily Rate  

Deputy Director of Planning 0.00 308.52$                     -$                                                                    
Principal  Planner (Transportation) 2.39 237.53$                     567.70$                                                              
Senior Planner (Land Use) 0.00 220.95$                     -$                                                                    
Senior Planner (Transportation) 0.00 229.00$                     -$                                                                    
Planner (Land Use) 0.00 190.00$                     -$                                                                    
Senior GIS Specialist 0.00 243.60$                     -$                                                                    
Principal GIS Specialist 0.00 246.00$                     -$                                                                    
Transportation Engineer 0.00 240.00$                     -$                                                                    
  

   567.70$                                                              
Fringe Rate 159.50% 905.48$                                                              
Overhead Rate 162.50% 1,471.41$                                                           
Total  Labor and Overhead 1,471.41$                                                           
  
Out-of-Pocket Expenses** 1,331.00$                                                           

 Sub-Total 2,802.41$                                                           

SUB-CONSULTANTS (attach man-day & fee FROM each sub-consultant; show total fee for each here)
Contract Labor - RPCGB Transportation Planner 80 18$                            1,440.00$                                                           
Sain Associates -Advanced Planning Study 1 45,042$                     45,042.00$                                                         

-$                                                                    
-$                                                                    

 Sub-Total 46,482.00$                                                         

 TOTAL FEE 49,284.41$                                                         
FEDERAL FUNDS 39,427.53$                                                         

 LOCAL MATCH 9,856.88$                                                           

 Fee  2/7/2013



 

2 Twentieth Street North Suite 1200 • Birmingham, Al  35203 
Phone (205) 251-8139 • Fax (205) 328-3304 • www.rpcgb.org • www.bhammpo.org 

 
 
December 6, 2012 
 
 
Christopher Brady 
City Engineer, City of Vestavia Hills 
Associate Director, Department of Public Services 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama  35216 
 
 
Mr. Brady: 
 
The Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham (RPCGB) was recently informed that the 
City of Vestavia Hills is interested in implementing a multi-modal trail along the Cahaba River. As 
requested, RPCGB will provide professional planning assistance in evaluating the expected impacts 
resulting from the construction of the 1.4 mile multi-modal trail along the Cahaba River and Old 
Overton Road. This project, which has been named The City of Vestavia Hills Cahaba-Liberty Trail, 
will specifically evaluate the potential for trail ways along to the Cahaba River and Overton Road/Old 
Overton Road. The trail would begin at River Run Drive to connect with the proposed Mountain 
Brook Park and end with a connection to trails on property owned by the Freshwater Land Trust 
near the Carraway-Davie House, a local historic gem. Further project details are provided herein. 
 
RPCGB is an intergovernmental agency that provides planning guidance for its member 
municipalities. This type of initiative could serve as an example of potentially duplicable innovative 
programming that supports the best interest of our citizens. This project is complementary to 
current proposals aimed at increasing the quantity of outdoor facilities in the Greater Birmingham 
area.  
 
I can be reached by phone at 205.264.8445 or by e-mail at FTaylor@rpcgb.org if you have any 
questions or concerns in this process. 
  
 
 
Sincerely,  

Franchesca Taylor 
Franchesca Taylor 
Active Transportation Planner 
 
 
 
CC:  Mike Kaczorowski, Principal Transportation Planner, RPCGB 

  

mailto:FTaylor@rpcgb.org


 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 
 

City of Vestavia Hills  
Cahaba-Liberty Trail 

-APPLE Project- 
Scope of Work 

 
 

Project Summary 
 
The City of Vestavia Hills has requested professional planning assistance in evaluating the expected 
impacts resulting from the construction of a 1.4 mile multimodal trail along the Cahaba River and Old 
Overton Road. The RPCGB, in response to this request, has enlisted the assistance of a qualified 
consulting firm from the Alabama Department of Transportation’s prequalified consultant listing. 
The consultant will provide professional services in the support of the Advanced Planning, 
Programming, and Logical Engineering (APPLE) program and in assessing impacts to the City of 
Vestavia Hills transportation system. This project will review the potential for a trailway along the 
Cahaba River and Overton Road/Old Overton Road. The proposed trail would begin at River run 
Drive, connect with the proposed Mountain Brook Park, and end with a connection to trails on 
property owned by the Freshwater Land Trust near the Carraway-Davie House (see map below). 

 

 



 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 

In addition to the roadways that are immediately adjacent to the Cahaba River site, RPCGB will also 
evaluate the impacts of a new pedestrian trail to local man-made features and environmentally 
sensitive areas. The City of Vestavia Hills also has requested that the RPCGB collect field date for the 
evaluation of bicycle and pedestrian levels of service (LOS). To support this effort, multimodal LOS 
assessments from the Regional Plan for three (3) roadway segments, both Existing and future No 
Build scenarios, will be used to aid in the evaluation of the bicycle and pedestrian levels of service. 
  
The effort to address the request for assistance generally follows the scope of work described herein. 

 Scope of Work 

Task 1. Project Administration and Stakeholder Management 

Subtask 1.1. Project Management and Coordination 

The RPCGB will develop a Project Owner’s Manual. The Project Owner’s Manual is a project 
management document that contains the scope of work, meeting agendas and minutes, a record of 
correspondence, and a chronicle of decisions that have been made throughout the life of the project. 
The purpose of the Project Owner’s Manual is to keep community leaders, neighborhood leaders, city 
officials, and participating agencies informed of the planning process. The Project Owner’s Manual is 
to also provide a legacy document that transcends changes in administration and is available to both 
the RPCGB and City of Vestavia Hills. 

Subtask 1.2. Kickoff Meeting 

The RPCGB will facilitate a project kickoff meeting with the City of Vestavia Hills and key 
stakeholders. Meeting stakeholders will include City of Vestavia Hills elected officials, Jefferson 
County Department of Development Services officials, Jefferson County Roads Department officials, 
key neighborhood and civic leaders, and business owners/operators. The purpose of the meeting will 
be to provide a project overview. The RPCGB will discuss project schedule, review base information 
needs, outline study reporting criteria, and articulate expectations for stakeholder involvement. 

Subtask 1.3. Meetings, Conference Calls, and Webinars 

The RPCGB will host up to four (4) in-person meetings in addition to the Kickoff Meeting with the 
Client and all key stakeholders.  

The first meeting will be held after the existing conditions analysis is completed. The existing 
conditions analysis will present the findings of the traffic analysis and environmental scan. The 
second meeting will be held prior to finalizing study recommendations for the purpose of soliciting 
feedback from stakeholders. The third meeting, for the purpose of discussing next steps and 
educating the Client about implementation strategies, will be held prior to finalizing the study. The 
fourth meeting will present the entire study, to include existing conditions finding, improvement 
recommendations, next steps, and implementation recommendations. 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 
 

Task 1 Deliverables 
Product Description. 

Project Owner’s 
Manual 

A legacy document that contains the scope of work, meeting agendas and 
minutes, a record of correspondence, and a chronicle of decisions that 
have been made throughout the life of the project 

Meetings 
 Kickoff Meeting 

 Four (4) formal stakeholder meetings 

Task 2. Transportation System Analysis 

Subtask 2.1. Data Collection and Field Review 

The RPCGB, will conduct a preliminary field review to assess the constraints and opportunities for 
the project. Following this initial field review, RPCGB will conduct a field review with the City of 
Vestavia Hills and other Stakeholders to discuss the constraints, opportunities, and approach to the 
project.  Stakeholders are expected to include representatives from the Freshwater Land Trust and 
others as deemed appropriate by the RPCGB and the City of Vestavia Hills. A project base map will be 
produced using GIS data and aerial photography; existing utilities in the area will be identified. 

The RPCGB will conduct a field review in order to visually confirm roadway geometry, intersection 
configurations, driveway locations, trailhead locations, pavement widths, pavement markings, traffic 
control devices, signal locations, and signal phasing. The RPCGB will also look at land uses, system 
connectivity and continuity, gaps and/or barriers, and any obvious fatal environmental or other 
flaws. 

Subtask 2.2. Review of Existing Documents 

The RPCGB will review any existing plans and studies in order to become familiar with previous 
planning and engineering efforts. This will assist with identifying and recommending strategies and 
solutions that support, and/or advance, project concepts and action plans without prohibition. 
Available information will be collected on the Mountain Brook Park and Freshwater Land Trust trails 
planned near Carraway-Davie House, and a future trail planned by a doctor’s office located in Liberty 
Park Urban Center. Information of record from various agencies will be reviewed in order to identify 
man-made features and environmentally sensitive areas.  These may include cemeteries, churches, 
schools, hospitals, parks, water and wastewater treatment facilities, public wells, public drinking 
water sources, ADEM registered hazardous materials sites, unusual sub-surface information 
available from previous explorations and geological maps, known historic structures, and 
archaeological sites from literature searches, known threatened and endangered species critical 
habitat, wetlands as depicted on the National Wetland Inventory (NWI) mapping, floodplain 
boundaries, and any other features readily available.  

Subtask 2.3. Transportation Analysis 

The RPCGB and its project team will collect morning (7AM-9AM) and evening (4PM-6PM) peak 
period turning movement counts at the intersection of Liberty Parkway and Overton Road. Visual 
observations will be conducted during the morning and evening peak traffic periods to assess 
general traffic operations of the all-way stop controlled intersection and document excessive traffic 
queues and other notable operational difficulties where applicable. Pneumatic tube count volume 
and vehicle classification data will be collected (four day counts: Thursday-Sunday) at Overton Road 
between River Run Drive and I-459 overpass, and on Old Overton Road between Overton Road and 
River Terrace Drive.   



 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 

 
Additionally, tube count data will be collected (four day counts, Thursday through Sunday) for Old 
Overton Road between River Terrace Drive and the Carraway-Davie House driveway, to reflect traffic 
volumes generated in association with a typical special event held at Carraway-Davie House. Field 
Data to assess the bicycle and pedestrian levels of service will be collected. During the field review, 
observations and measurements of the canoe launch area and adjacent parking area will be made for 
incorporation into the project mapping. It will be determined if project termini and connections to 
other planned trails are logical termini and can be supported with the available data.  

 
Task 2 Deliverables 

Product Description. 

Existing Conditions 
Report 

A Technical Memorandum that compiles data and documents, analytical 
results of existing and expected transportation system operational 
conditions, and operational/geometric deficiencies. 

Task 3. Alternatives Analysis and Documentation 

Subtask 3.1. Preliminary Purpose and Need 

The RPCGB will develop and present a preliminary purpose and need statement that articulates the 
transportation problem, and the need for the transportation infrastructure improvement projects 
that have been identified through the APPLE process. The preliminary purpose and need statement 
will also articulate transportation goals and objectives of the community for both vehicular and non-
motorized travel. 

Subtask 3.2. Alternatives Development and Analysis 

The RPCGB will develop, analyze, and present potential transportation system improvement 
alternatives. Field data will be collected for the evaluation of bicycle and pedestrian levels of service. 
During the field review, observations and measurements of the canoe launch area and adjacent 
parking area will be made for incorporation into the project mapping. Project termini and 
connections to other planned trails will be judged for feasibility through the use of available data. 
All alternatives will be presented using electronic mapping, as well as in tabular format. Trail 
implementation and alternative scenarios will be evaluated based upon the completed analysis of 
impacts and benefits, and be presented in an objective manner in order that stakeholders might 
make an informed decision about feasibility. 

Subtask 3.3. Pre-NEPA Environmental Screening 

The RPCGB, with guidance from the Alabama Department of Transportation Environmental 
Technical Section (ETS), will conduct a pre-NEPA environmental screening in order to identify the 
presence and location within the study area of any high-level environmental issues. Such 
environmental screening will include assessment of: wetlands, floodplains, streams/rivers, 
threatened and endangered species, cultural and historic resources, recreational resources, and 
socioeconomic impacts. Any environmental issues within and immediately adjacent to the study area 
will be mapped using a Geographic Information System (GIS), and presented on both a base-map and 
aerial photograph. 

The Environmental Technical Section (ETS) will be consulted throughout this task, and based upon 
their guidance, comments, and/or recommendations, RPCGB will identify potential fatal flaws, 
environmental issues and impacts, and alignment and/or design considerations for potential 
transportation system improvement concepts. 



 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 
 

Subtask 3.4. Prepare Advanced Planning Report 

The RPCGB will prepare and submit a draft Advanced Planning Report. Generally, the Advanced 
Planning Report will present information in a logical manner and be organized as shown in the 
following: 

 Cover Page 
 Executive Summary 

 Table of Contents 

 Study Area Presentation 

 Existing and Expected Conditions Analysis 

 Purpose and Need Statement 
The Purpose and Need Statement will clearly articulate the transportation problem, goals, 
and objectives. 

 Inventory of Potential Environmental Issues, and Impacts 

 Potential Transportation System Improvement Alternatives 

 Summary of Fatal Flaws (for each alternative) 

 Preliminary Design Concepts (for each alternative) 

 Summary of Findings and Costs 
The Summary of Findings and Costs will provide an objective presentation of data and cost 
estimates for each alternative design concept in order to inform stakeholders about 
feasibility. 

 Next Steps 
Next Steps will include general guidance about project advancement/implementation 
process, and a Responsibility Matrix that highlights who needs to do what in order to 
advance a project. 

The RPCGB will address all comments, and perform a thorough quality review of the document, 
considering both technical and grammatical accuracy. A final Advanced Planning Report will be 
submitted to the RPCGB once all of the stakeholder comments and concerns are successfully 
addressed. 

The RPCGB will provide the City of Vestavia Hills with a print-ready master document, an assembled 
document, and electronic copies of the document.  



 
 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Serving the Municipal and County Governments in 

BLOUNT · CHILTON · JEFFERSON · SHELBY · ST. CLAIR · WALKER COUNTIES   
 

Task 3 Deliverables 
Product Description. 

Alternatives Analysis 

An assessment of potential transportation system modifications, 
considering: 

 Potential Operational/Safety Benefits/Improvements 
 Potential Environmental Impacts 

 Potential Costs 

Advanced Planning 
Report  

A summary report that highlights the transportation problem, potential 
alternative solutions for addressing the problem, an objective 
evaluation of the alternatives, and presents an objective summary of 
findings. 

Project Staffing & Cost 

The RPCGB will assign Franchesca Taylor, Active Transportation Planner, as project manager, and 
assign an on-call third party consultant to assist with completing the Scope of Work. 

Project Schedule 

The City of Vestavia Hills Advance Planning Report is anticipated to be completed within six (6) 
months from the notice to proceed, and will not exceed nine (9) months. The scope of services is 
based on RPCGB understanding of the advanced planning report process and the desired product. 
Return of the signed original agreement and written authorization to proceed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills will constitute the start of the project. 

Exclusions from Scope of Work 

The following services are not included in RPCGB scope: 
 Construction drawings 
 Neighborhood or business association meetings beyond those identified in the project scope 
 Detailed road or utility design 
 Any other services not specifically listed in the project Scope of Work 

 
Any Client directed changes to the final plan after the Client’s approval of the draft revisions shall be 
reimbursed in accordance with RPCGB billing rates that are in effect at the time that the services are 
actually performed. 

Compensation 

The Scope of Work total costs for providing planning services and work products as described herein 
are $49,284.41, assessed at 80% Federal and 20% Local Match. The Client agrees to pay RPCGB a 
lump sum fee of $9,856.88, this amount constituting the local match required for the project. The City 
of Vestavia Hills will be required to provide the local match prior to RPCGB starting the project.  
 
 
https://rpc.sharepoint.com/planning/_layouts/WordViewer.aspx?id=/planning/Shared%20Documents/Projects/County/Jeff
erson_County/Vestavia%20Hills/1099.nn_APPLE%20Project_Cahaba_Liberty_Trail/Cahaba_Liberty_Scope.docx 

https://rpc.sharepoint.com/planning/_layouts/WordViewer.aspx?id=/planning/Shared%20Documents/Projects/County/Jefferson_County/Vestavia%20Hills/1099.nn_APPLE%20Project_Cahaba_Liberty_Trail/Cahaba_Liberty_Scope.docx&Source=https%3A%2F%2Frpc%2Esharepoint%2Ecom%2Fplanning%2FSitePages%2FHome%2Easpx%3FRootFolder%3D%252Fplanning%252FShared%2520Documents%252FProjects%252FCounty%252FJefferson%255FCounty%252FVestavia%2520Hills%252F1099%252Enn%255FAPPLE%2520Project%255FCahaba%255FLiberty%255FTrail%26FolderCTID%3D0x012000047C88A5485BBE45B5BA948DEF8F8BC2%26View%3D%7BB57A8685-1094-4D30-89C4-C4FAD7A8E9EA%7D&DefaultItemOpen=1
https://rpc.sharepoint.com/planning/_layouts/WordViewer.aspx?id=/planning/Shared%20Documents/Projects/County/Jefferson_County/Vestavia%20Hills/1099.nn_APPLE%20Project_Cahaba_Liberty_Trail/Cahaba_Liberty_Scope.docx&Source=https%3A%2F%2Frpc%2Esharepoint%2Ecom%2Fplanning%2FSitePages%2FHome%2Easpx%3FRootFolder%3D%252Fplanning%252FShared%2520Documents%252FProjects%252FCounty%252FJefferson%255FCounty%252FVestavia%2520Hills%252F1099%252Enn%255FAPPLE%2520Project%255FCahaba%255FLiberty%255FTrail%26FolderCTID%3D0x012000047C88A5485BBE45B5BA948DEF8F8BC2%26View%3D%7BB57A8685-1094-4D30-89C4-C4FAD7A8E9EA%7D&DefaultItemOpen=1


RESOLUTION NUMBER 4406 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
HIRE SIX NEW POLICE OFFICERS AND TO PROMOTE SIX 
EXISTING OFFICERS TO THE RANK OF SERGEANT TO FILL 
SIX DESK SERGEANT POSITIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 28, 2013, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4393 to authorize the Mayor and City 

Manager to enter into an agreement for dispatch services from Shelby County and Shelby 

County 9-1-1; and 

 WHEREAS, due to the relocation of public communications, the Police Chief 

and City Manager have recognized duties that will need to be performed at the Municipal 

Center in the absence of said dispatchers which will require a total of six (6) desk 

sergeants; and 

 WHEREAS, the Police Chief has researched the issues and recommended that 

six (6) existing officers be promoted to the rank of sergeant to fill these six (6) desk 

sergeant positions and that six (6) new officers be hired to replace the promoted officers 

on the beat as detailed in “Exhibit A” which is attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4406 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

authorize the City Manager to retain and promote said officers. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to hire six (6) new police officers and 

equip said officers with required uniforms and equipment; and 



2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to promote six (6) existing police 

officers to the rank of sergeant effective May 20, 2013 to fill the desk sergeant 

positions; and 

3. This Resolution Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 







Resolution Number 4407 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4407 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
HIRE FIVE (5) SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS (“SRO’S”) FOR 
ADDED SECURITY IN THE VESTAVIA HILLS SCHOOL 
SYSTEM AND PROVIDING FOR THE DIVISION OF FUNDING 
FOR SAID OFFICERS 

 
 WHEREAS, the leadership of the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) and the 

Vestavia Hills Board of Education (“Board”) has partnered to provide additional security 

in the City’s schools; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Board believe that additional School Resource 

Officers (“SRO’s”) within each of the City’s schools would provide for the best 

methodology of enhanced security; and 

 WHEREAS, the City presently employs a total of four (4) SRO’s with the City 

paying the salary of one (1) SRO and the Board of Education paying the salary of three 

(3) SRO’s; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board leadership, along with the City Council and City staff, 

has had numerous discussions and reviewed various proposals and has reached a 

consensus for the following recommendations in order to enhance security at each of the 

City’s schools: 

A. Effective FY 2013, the City will initiate actions to employ five (5) new 

additional SRO’s with the salaries for said SRO’s for fiscal year 2013 

which shall be divided as follows:  the City shall be responsible for the 

salaries of two (2) of the additional SRO’s and the Board shall incur the 

salaries for three (3) of the additional SRO’s; and 

B. Effective the beginning of FY 2015 and every year thereafter until 

changed by the City, the Board will incur the salaries of four (4) of these 

additional SRO’s and the City shall incur the salary of one (1) of the 

additional SRO’s; and 

C. The City will provide each SRO with a police vehicle; and  

D. The Board will incur all one-time costs associated with uniforms, training 

and required equipment for said additional SRO’s; and 



Resolution Number 4407 
Page 2 

 
E. Said Resolution Number 4407 shall become effective immediately upon 

the adoption and approval by the Vestavia Hills City Council as well as a 

matching Resolution approved and adopted by the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to employ five (5) new SRO’s 

contingent on the following conditions: 

a. Effective FY 2013, the City will initiate actions to employ five (5) new 

additional SRO’s with the salaries for said SRO’s for fiscal year 2013 

which shall be divided as follows:  the City shall be responsible for the 

salaries of two (2) of the additional SRO’s and the Board shall incur the 

salaries for three (3) of the additional SRO’s; and 

b. Effective the beginning of FY 2015 and every year thereafter until 

changed by the City, the Board will incur the salaries of four (4) of these 

additional SRO’s and the City shall incur the salary of one (1) of the 

additional SRO’s; and 

c. The City will provide each SRO with a police vehicle; and  

d. The Board will incur all one-time costs associated with uniforms, training 

and required equipment for said additional SRO’s; and 

e. Said Resolution Number 4407 shall become effective immediately upon 

the adoption and approval by the Vestavia Hills City Council as well as a 

matching Resolution approved and adopted by the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number 4407 
Page 3 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2434 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2434 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO TRANSFER THE MAYOR’S 
ADMINISTRATIVE DUTIES AUTHORIZED IN CITY 
ORDINANCES TO THE CITY MANAGER 

 
 WHEREAS, on November 5, 2012, the City of Vestavia Hills began operating 

under a Council-Manager form of Government pursuant to Act 2010-544; and 

 WHEREAS, certain powers and responsibilities were transferred from the Mayor 

to the City Manager pursuant to Alabama law; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

also transfer all administrative duties which are assigned to the Mayor in the previously 

adopted ordinances of the City should be transferred to the City Manager. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to perform all administrative duties 

assigned to the Mayor in all City Ordinances; and 

2. This Ordinance number 2434 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and posting and/or publication as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2434 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2434 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of February, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the _________ 
day of __________________, 2013. 
 
    
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4400 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4408 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR 25 COMPUTERS FOR 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills received and opened bids for 25 

computers with a three-year lease/purchase agreement for the City of Vestavia Hills on 

January 31, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, five bids were received; and 

 WHEREAS, the IT Director, in a memorandum dated February 18, 2013, 

recommended the acceptance of Dasher Technologies in an amount not to exceed 

$38,583.00; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Dasher Technologies in an amount not to 

exceed $38,583.00 is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute any and all 

documents necessary to secure lease/purchase of said equipment; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4408 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







































RESOLUTION NUMBER 4410 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BARRY DAVIS 
ARCHITECTS, P.C. FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR A 
PROPOSED CITY GARAGE/MAINTENANCE FACILITY AT WALD 
PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2013, the Mayor and City Council approved Ordinance 

Number 2432 to authorize the City Manager to negotiate a contract with Barry Davis Architects, 

P.C. for architectural services for Wald Park; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said agreement is attached to this Resolution Number 4410 in an 

amount not to exceed $18,350.00; and 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with Barry 

Davis Architects, P.C. for architectural services for a proposed garage/maintenance 

facility at Wald Park in an amount not to exceed $18,350.00; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4410 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4410 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 







































Resolution Number 4411 
Page 1 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4411 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR JEFFERSON COUNTY PROJECT NUMBER 
NH-HSIP-0003(574) IMPROVEMENTS ALONG SR-3 (US-31) FROM 
SHADES CREST ROAD TO HOLLYWOOD BOULEVARD 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter at times referred to as 

City) is desirous of having certain improvements on SR-3 (US-31), within the City Limits of 

Vestavia Hills, in accordance with plans prepared by the Alabama Department of Transportation 

and designated as Project Number:  NH-HSIP-0003(574) – Planing, Widening, Resurfacing, 

Loop Detectors, Permanent Traffic Stripe and Guardrail End Anchors along SR-3 (US-31) from 

Shades Crest Road to Hollywood Boulevard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation is now or may later be desirous 

of receiving Federal Aid for improvement of said highway; and 

 WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration, an agency of the United States of 

America, will not participate in any funding for construction of said project until and unless the 

City will agree to certain requirements of the Federal Highway Administration.  The City, for the 

purpose of complying with requirements of the Federal Highway Administration in regard to its 

funding of improvements of the type and kind in this agreement provided for, does hereby pass 

and adopt the following resolution: 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the plans of said project including alignment, profile, 

grades, typical sections and paving layouts as submitted to this City and which are now on file in 

the Office of the City Clerk are hereby approved and that the location of said project as staked 

out by the Alabama Department of Transportation as shown by said plans referred to are hereby 

approved and the Alabama Department of Transportation, in cooperation with the Federal 

Highway Administration, is hereby authorized to proceed with the grading, draining, paving, and 

otherwise improving and construction of said project in accordance with said plans; and 

 The City, by and through its Mayor and Council, hereby grants to the Alabama 

Department of Transportation the full use of and access to the dedicated widths of any existing 

streets for the construction of said project and hereby agrees to permit and allow the Alabama 

Department of Transportation to close and barricade the said project and intersection streets for 



Resolution Number 4411 
Page 2 
 
as long as necessary while the said project is being graded, drained, paved, and otherwise 

improved, and hereby agrees that the use of any street or highway for parking within an 

interchange area will not at any time be permitted; and 

 The City hereby further agrees to adopt or pass such legally effective Ordinances and/or 

laws as will permanently barricade and/or relocate certain intersecting streets as required by the 

State and to permanently deny or limit access at certain locations as required by the State along 

said improvements, all of which are more specifically stated as follows: 

 N/A 

 Please refer to:  Project Notes    Sheet 2I-2P 

 Please Refer to:  Traffic Signal Plan Notes  Sheet 2Q-2S 

 Please refer to:  Traffic Control Notes  Sheets 2T-2Y 

 Please refer to:  Traffic Control Plans   Sheets 6-16 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council, that for and in 

consideration of the Alabama Department of Transportation in cooperation with the Federal 

Highway Administration, constructing said highway and routing traffic along the same through 

the City over said project, such City hereby agrees with the Alabama Department of 

Transportation for the benefit of the Federal Highway Administration, that on the above 

mentioned project, the City will not in the further permit encroachments upon the right-of-way; 

nor will it pass any Ordinances or laws fixing a speed limit contrary to those limits provided for 

in Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and other laws of Alabama; nor will 

it permit other than parallel parking in areas where parking is permitted; nor will it allow the 

placing of any informational, regulatory, or warning signs, signals, median crossover, curb and 

pavement or other markings, and traffic signals without written approval of the Alabama 

Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration of the location, form and 

character of such installations.  The traffic control devices and signs installed during construction 

and those installed after completion of this project shall be in accordance with the latest edition 

of the national Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and accepted standards adopted by 

the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and by the Federal Highway 

Administration.  The City further agrees that subsequent traffic control devices deemed 

necessary by it in keeping with applicable statutes, rules and regulations to promote the safe and 

efficient utilization of the Highway under the authority of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama, 



Resolution Number 4411 
Page 3 
 
1975 and all other applicable laws of Alabama, shall be subject to and must have the approval of 

the Alabama Department of Transportation of the State of Alabama and of the Federal Highway 

Administration, prior to the installation and the City further agrees that it will enforce traffic and 

control the same under the provision of Title 32, Chapter 5, Code of Alabama, 1975 and other 

applicable laws of Alabama. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on crossroads, service drives, or 

relocated roads that are not designated Federal or State highways that are in the 

jurisdiction of the City; and 

2. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance or any existing road which has been 

replaced by a new road; or, if the existing road is not used, the City has the option of 

vacating same; and 

3. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on interchanges to the theoretical 

crossing of the denied access line; and 

4. That the City agrees to perform all maintenance on grade separations along the roadway 

to the end of the bridge, or the denied access fence, whatever the case. 

It is understood and agreed that no changes in this Resolution or Agreement shall in the 

future be made without having obtained the prior approval of the Federal Highway 

Administration. 

This Resolution passed, adopted and approved this the 25th day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 











RESOLUTION NUMBER 4414 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDERS FOR VETERANS 
LANDSCAPE WORK ON HEALTHY WAY 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 9, 2012, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4293 to accept a bid from Veterans Landscaping for the construction of public 

improvements of Healthy Way; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Services Director, in a memorandum dated February 20, 2013 

(copy attached) indicated some needed change orders totaling $107,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed said detail and recommended approval of 

the requested change orders. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to make change orders as detailed in the attached 

memorandum in an amount not to exceed $107,000; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4414 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City of Vestavia Hills Public Services 
513 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

205.978.0150 
 

Interoffice Memo 
 
February 20, 2013 
 
TO:    Randy Robertson 
  City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian C. Davis bcd 
  Public Services Director 
 
RE:  Change Orders for Veteran’s Landscape at Patchwork 
 
Per our discussion concerning Patchwork construction projects below is the 
information concerning change orders for work.  The Veteran’s contract does 
include allowances that totaled $107,000.  None of these allowances will be 
needed, so approval of these change orders will still result in a net under run on 
the total contract value. 
 
These are all necessary and need to be completed; #1 is complete already, #2 
needs to be completed as soon as possible to avoid additional delay in 
completing the project, #3 is a concern that needs to be addressed.  Goodwyn, 
Mills, and Cawood have reviewed these changes with Mr. Brady and they agree 
the price is reasonable. 
 

1. $1,000 for additional sod placed per revised planting plan. This work was 
completed per landscape plan, but was not included in original quantities 
identified in contract documents. 

 
2. $12,772 for water service to irrigation system, including labor and 

equipment to perform tap and road bore (tap fee waived by BWWB). This 
work was not identified in contract documents. 

 
3. $2,778 for plantings to protect slope and headwall near sidewalk. This 

work is identified as additional precaution for pedestrian safety where 
sidewalk is near steep slope and headwall of the creek crossing 

 
Total of these Change Order requests = $16,550. 
 
 



 
I would like to proceed with bringing forward.  While it is not additional 
expenditure above the value of a contract already approved, I believe this still 
requires Council consent for altering the contract to include these services. 
 
 
CC:  Rebecca Leavings 
  Christopher Brady 



To: Veterans Landscaping Company Inc.
3801 Mary Taylor Road Proposal Expires:
Birmingham, AL  35235

Project:
R d C t ti f P t h k F

Quality Creative Landscaping LLC
3104 Old Quarry Road

Birmingham, AL  35235

Change Order Request Date January 24, 2013
30 days

Cahaba River Road Improvements and Entrance
Road Construction for Patchwork Farms

Description of Change:
Change Proposal #: 001

TIME EXTENSION: 0 days

T l T l T l

Added Bermuda Sod per revision to contract drawing L-1.0 Planting Plan

Total Total Total
Qty Unit Labor Material Equipment Other Sub TOTAL
200 SY 424           320           100               844                     

0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                   

Description
Added bermuda sod

0                   
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                     
0                   
0                     
0                     
0                     

424           320           100.00          0        0              844                     
26             26                       

424           346           100               0        0              870                     

Apply % to OH/Fee

     
SUB TOTAL 1
Tax 8%
SUBTOTAL 2

Apply % to OH/Fee
Contractor OH on Subtotal 2 15% 869.60         130.44                

SUBTOTAL 3 1,000.04             

TOTAL  for COR # 001 1,000                     















Ordinance Number 2435 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER_2435 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NUMBER 2423; TO 
AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT A MODIFICATION TO THE REAL 
ESTATE SALES CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, AS “SELLER,” AND NSH CORP., AS 
“PURCHASER”; AND TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A SANITARY SEWER 
EASEMENT TO JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA. 
 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2435 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 25th day of February, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, on November 15, 2012, the City Council enacted Ordinance 

Number 2423 authorizing and directing the Mayor and City Manager to take the 

necessary legal action to sell the five (5) residential lots located at Patchwork Farm to 

NSH Corp. for and in consideration of Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000.00); 

and 

 WHEREAS, Section 3 of Ordinance Number 2423 provides that the sale shall be 

made and closed in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of a Real Estate 

Sales Contract, a copy of which is attached to this Ordinance Number 2423, marked as 

Exhibit 1 and incorporated therein by reference as though set out fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Real Estate Sales Contract marked as Exhibit 1 provides in 

section 2(3) that “Each lot will be approved for a conventional septic tank system.”; and 

 WHEREAS, according to NSH Corp., Jefferson County will not allow the five 

(5) new homes to be built on the five (5) single-family residential lots to be served by 

septic tanks; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 12, 2013, NSH Corp. signed the Real Estate Sales 

Contract and modified the same to request the City grant a Sanitary Sewer Easement to 

Jefferson County, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 12, 2013, NSH Corp. furnished a Sanitary Sewer 

Easement to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) with a request that the City 

grant said Sanitary Sewer Easement to Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2435 
Page 2 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. Ordinance Number 2423 enacted by the City Council of Vestavia Hills on 

November 15, 2012 is hereby amended to the extent as herein provided below. 

 2. A copy of the modified Real Estate Sales Contract by and between the 

City of Vestavia Hills, as “Seller,” and NSH Corp., an Alabama corporation, as 

“Purchaser,” hereinafter referred to as the “Amended Real Estate Sales Contract,” is 

attached hereto, marked as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Ordinance Number 

2435 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

 3. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver the Amended Real Estate Sales Contract designated as Exhibit A for 

and on behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 4. A copy of the Sanitary Sewer Easement wherein the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama grants to Jefferson County, Alabama a sanitary easement to serve the five 

(5) residential lots at Patchwork Farm, hereinafter referred to as the “Sanitary Sewer 

Easement,” is attached hereto marked as Exhibit B and is incorporated into this 

Ordinance Number 2435 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

 5. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver the Sanitary Sewer Easement designated as Exhibit B for and on 

behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 6. Upon approval, adoption and enactment of this Ordinance Number 2435 

the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take any and all legal action 

necessary to close the sale of the subject property all in accordance with the terms, 

provisions and conditions of the Amended Real Estate Sales Contract designated as 

Exhibit A. 

 7. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

  



Ordinance Number 2435 
Page 3 

 
 8. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of 

February, 2013. 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
 
 
      By_________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2435 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of February, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the _________ 
day of __________________, 2013. 
 
    
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 









 



 











1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Monk, Stephen R. <smonk@babc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 9:52 AM
To: Rebecca Leavings; Cole Williams; Christopher Brady
Cc: tyler belcher; bob@alaeng.com
Subject: RE: Thuss Farms sewer ROW

Becky: 
  
I have reviewed the Patchwork Farms CC&Rs and find no restrictions on the City’s ability to grant a sewer easement into 
the Nature Park property.  The Patchwork Farm PUD Plan specifically allows utility easements to be granted within the 
Nature Park property.  However, the PUD Plan does require a 17.5‐foot landscaping buffer on the Planned Business (17‐
acre tract) property adjacent to these single‐family lots. 
  
One question I have though involves the use of the proposed sewer easement.  The unimproved 17 acre site could 
connect directly into the existing sewer lines running along and in the Nature Park; however, is connection to the sewer 
lines along the rear of these residential lots feasible for the commercial development?  If so, will the sewer lines to be 
installed along the rear of the residential lots be of sufficient size to handle commercial uses on the 17 acre site? 
  
Steve 
  
Confidentiality Notice and Disclaimer:  This email is from a law firm, and it may be protected by the attorney-client 
privilege or as attorney work product.  If you received this message by error, please notify the sender that you received it 
by replying to this email and then delete it from your computer.  Unless specifically stated otherwise in the body of the 
message, the content of the message is not to be construed as establishing an attorney-client relationship if one does not 
otherwise exist, or as a consent to conduct business by any electronic medium. 
  
IRS Circular 230 Notice: To ensure compliance with IRS requirements, we inform you that any U.S. federal tax advice 
contained in this communication (including any attachments) is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for 
the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending to 
another party any transaction or matter addressed herein. 
  
  

 

Stephen R. Monk 
Partner 

Phone 205-521-8429 
Fax   205-488-6429 
Email  smonk@babc.com 

One Federal Place 
1819 Fifth Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35203-2119 
  
From: Rebecca Leavings [mailto:city.clerk@ci.vestaviahills.al.us]  
Sent: Monday, February 18, 2013 3:46 PM 
To: Rebecca Leavings; Cole Williams; Christopher Brady; Monk, Stephen R. 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Cole Williams <CWilliams@gmcnetwork.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 10:44 AM
To: Monk, Stephen R.
Cc: Rebecca Leavings; Cole Williams; Christopher Brady; tyler belcher; bob@alaeng.com
Subject: Re: Thuss Farms sewer ROW

Steve, 
I think you thinking is correct that this should be used in the future for the commercial development so that another 
sewer crossing the nature park and creek will not be required. The sewer will be a minimum of 8" by Jeffco standards 
which will handle a good deal of flow. The sewer easement will not allow for the planting of a buffer so any required 
buffer will be on the development side of the easement which will reduce the useable property by a little. These are a 
few of my thoughts.  
 
Cole Williams 
 
On Feb 19, 2013, at 10:51 AM, "Monk, Stephen R." <smonk@babc.com> wrote: 

Becky: 
  
I have reviewed the Patchwork Farms CC&Rs and find no restrictions on the City’s ability to grant a 
sewer easement into the Nature Park property.  The Patchwork Farm PUD Plan specifically allows utility 
easements to be granted within the Nature Park property.  However, the PUD Plan does require a 17.5‐
foot landscaping buffer on the Planned Business (17‐acre tract) property adjacent to these single‐family 
lots. 
  
One question I have though involves the use of the proposed sewer easement.  The unimproved 17 acre 
site could connect directly into the existing sewer lines running along and in the Nature Park; however, 
is connection to the sewer lines along the rear of these residential lots feasible for the commercial 
development?  If so, will the sewer lines to be installed along the rear of the residential lots be of 
sufficient size to handle commercial uses on the 17 acre site? 
  
Steve 
  
Confidentiality Notice and Disclaimer:  This email is from a law firm, and it may be protected by the 
attorney-client privilege or as attorney work product.  If you received this message by error, please notify 
the sender that you received it by replying to this email and then delete it from your computer.  Unless 
specifically stated otherwise in the body of the message, the content of the message is not to be 
construed as establishing an attorney-client relationship if one does not otherwise exist, or as a consent 
to conduct business by any electronic medium. 
  
IRS Circular 230 Notice: To ensure compliance with IRS requirements, we inform you that any U.S. 
federal tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments) is not intended or written 
to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the Internal Revenue 
Code or (ii) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or matter addressed 
herein. 
  
  
<image001.gif> 

 
Stephen R. Monk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Bob Easley <bob@alaeng.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 10:59 AM
To: Cole Williams; Monk, Stephen R.
Cc: Rebecca Leavings; Christopher Brady; tyler belcher
Subject: RE: Thuss Farms sewer ROW

I believe that there is a planned 35’ landscape buffer adjacent to the back of the residential lots.  I have spoken with 
Richard Mixon at Jefferson County Environmental Services about putting a berm and landscaping in the sewer 
easement.  As long as we are not counting on the berm for minimum cover (which we are not) they are ok with the 
berm in the easement.  They do not want trees or plants with deep penetrating roots in the sewer easement, but 
landscaping is ok.   
 
Thank you, 
  
Bob Easley 
Alabama Engineering Co., Inc. 
Phone (205) 803-2161 ext. 11 
Fax (205) 803-2162 
 
From: Cole Williams [mailto:CWilliams@gmcnetwork.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 10:44 AM 
To: Monk, Stephen R. 
Cc: Rebecca Leavings; Cole Williams; Christopher Brady; tyler belcher; Bob Easley 
Subject: Re: Thuss Farms sewer ROW 
 
Steve, 
I think you thinking is correct that this should be used in the future for the commercial development so that another 
sewer crossing the nature park and creek will not be required. The sewer will be a minimum of 8" by Jeffco standards 
which will handle a good deal of flow. The sewer easement will not allow for the planting of a buffer so any required 
buffer will be on the development side of the easement which will reduce the useable property by a little. These are a 
few of my thoughts.  
 
Cole Williams 
 
On Feb 19, 2013, at 10:51 AM, "Monk, Stephen R." <smonk@babc.com> wrote: 

Becky: 
  
I have reviewed the Patchwork Farms CC&Rs and find no restrictions on the City’s ability to grant a 
sewer easement into the Nature Park property.  The Patchwork Farm PUD Plan specifically allows utility 
easements to be granted within the Nature Park property.  However, the PUD Plan does require a 17.5‐
foot landscaping buffer on the Planned Business (17‐acre tract) property adjacent to these single‐family 
lots. 
  
One question I have though involves the use of the proposed sewer easement.  The unimproved 17 acre 
site could connect directly into the existing sewer lines running along and in the Nature Park; however, 
is connection to the sewer lines along the rear of these residential lots feasible for the commercial 
development?  If so, will the sewer lines to be installed along the rear of the residential lots be of 
sufficient size to handle commercial uses on the 17 acre site? 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Christopher Brady
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 7:23 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: RE: Thuss Farms sewer ROW

I have reviewed and do not see any adverse affects of granting this easement. 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
Christopher Brady, PE 
City Engineer, City of Vestavia Hills 
 
From: Rebecca Leavings  
Sent: Monday, February 18, 2013 2:07 PM 
To: Cole Williams; Christopher Brady; Monk, Stephen R. 
Cc: tyler belcher; bob@alaeng.com 
Subject: FW: Thuss Farms sewer ROW 
 
Signature Homes is getting ready to close on the 5 lots at Patchwork.  However, they cannot obtain 
permission for septic tanks and therefore require a sewer easement.  Attached is a ROW agreement 
for said easement and I will follow this email with a map detailing the location which is immediately 
adjacent to the side of lot 5 and rear of the remaining lots. 
  
Mr. Boone has reviewed these documents and found no legal problems, however, he determined that 
I need to get written opinions from you to determine if this impedes or inhibits construction on this 
neighboring lot.  As you recall, this neighboring lot would be the 17 acre commercial parcel and a 
portion of the the nature park (along the creek). 
  
Please review the attached and advise if you see any problems with this easement.  The Council is 
scheduled to hear this on March 11. 
  
Thanks! 
  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills AL  35216 
(205) 978-0184 Phone 
(205) 978-0122 Fax 
city.clerk@ci.vestaviahills.al.us 
  
  
 

From: Bob Easley [mailto:bob@alaeng.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 07, 2013 4:01 PM 
To: Rebecca Leavings 
Cc: Watson, Kelly; Tyler Belcher (tbelcher@e-signaturehomes.com) 
Subject: Thuss Farms sewer ROW 



Ordinance Number 2436 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER_2436 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
DEMOLITION, RAZING AND REMOVAL OF A DILAPIDATED 
SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING SITUATED ON THE 
PATCHWORK FARM PROPERTY AT 4609 OLD LOONEY MILL 
ROAD IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS SOMETIMES 
REFERRED TO AS THE “THUSS FARMHOUSE.”   
 
 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2436 is approved, adopted and enacted by the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 25th day of February, 

2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) presently owns 

portions of the property commonly referred to as “Patchwork Farm,” specifically 

including, but not limited to the following: 

 A. Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 in Thuss Farm Subdivision as recorded in Map Book 

228, Page 48, Jefferson County, Alabama (“the five (5) residential lots”); and 

 B. A two-story single-family dwelling with a four-car garage on the west side 

of the structure constructed of cinderblock and wood frame situated at 4609 Old Looney 

Mill Road, hereinafter referred to as “Thuss farmhouse”; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the property, 

real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council may, by ordinance to be entered in its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the Mayor to make title 

thereto, and a conveyance made by the Mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests 

the grantee with the title of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-48, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all contracts 

for the City of Vestavia Hills shall be made and approved by ordinance and signed in the 

name of the City of Vestavia Hills by the Mayor and countersigned by the City Manager; 

and 



Ordinance Number 2436 
Page 2 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City 

Council”) enacted Ordinance Number 2423 on November 15, 2012 authorizing and 

directing the execution and delivery of a Real Estate Sales Contract by and between the 

City, as “Seller,” and NSH Corporation, as “Purchaser,” for the five (5) residential lots 

for and in consideration of the aggregate amount of Four Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($400,000.00) being at the rate of Eighty Thousand Dollars ($80,000.00) per lot; and 

 WHEREAS, the “Thuss Farmhouse” is vacant and is in a dilapidated condition 

due to extensive vandalism, removal of materials and lack of occupancy for an extended 

period of time; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the structure known as 

the “Thuss farmhouse” is surplus property and is no longer needed for public or 

municipal purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the demolition and 

removal of the structure known as the “Thuss Farmhouse” from the Patchwork Farm 

property would be in the public interest and promote the health, safety and welfare of the 

community at large; 

 WHEREAS, NSH Corporation has offered to demolish, raze and remove the 

structure known as the “Thuss Farmhouse” at the Patchwork Farm property at absolutely 

no cost to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

 WHEREAS, NSH Corporation has entered into a Contract with Flanagan 

Contracting, LLC whereby Flanagan Contracting, LLC has agreed to demolish, raze and 

remove the structure known as the “Thuss Farmhouse” for and in consideration of the 

sum of Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($12,500.00) to be paid by NSH 

Corporation (“Contract”); and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the above-described Contract is attached hereto, marked 

as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as though set out fully 

herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City is willing to accept the very generous offer of NSH 

Corporation provided the Contract by and between NSH Corporation and Flanagan 

Contracting, LLC is amended to add sections XII, XIII, XIV, XV and XVI; and 



Ordinance Number 2436 
Page 3 

 
 WHEREAS, a copy of the Addendum is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 2 and 

is incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as though set out fully herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The dilapidated structure on the property at Patchwork Farm commonly 

referred to as the “Thuss Farmhouse” is found and determined to not be needed for public 

or municipal purposes by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is hereby declared as 

surplus property all in accordance with the requirements of Title 11-47-20, Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

 2. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama hereby accepts the very generous 

offer by NSH Corporation to demolish, raze and remove the structure known as “Thuss 

farmhouse” pursuant to and in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions of 

the Contract by and between NSH Corporation and Flanagan Contracting, LLC and the 

Addendum thereto. 

 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 4. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance which shall continue in full force 

and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2436 
Page 4 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #2436 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 25th day of February, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the _________ 
day of __________________, 2013. 
 
    
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT 
 
 WITNESSETH THIS ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT, made and entered into on this the 
________ day of February, 2013, by and between NSH Corp., an Alabama corporation (“NSH”), and 
Flanagan Contracting, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“Flanagan”). 
 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, NSH and Flanagan have heretofore entered into a written Contract whereby 
Flanagan has agreed to demolish, raze and remove a dilapidated single-family residential structure 
situated on a portion of the Patchwork Farm property at 4609 Old Looney Mill Road for and in 
consideration of the sum of Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($12,500.00) to be paid by NSH; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, NSH and Flanagan wish to amend the Contract by adding sections XII, XIII, XIV, 
XV and XVI to the Contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That in consideration of 
the mutual covenants, promises and premises contained herein for the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration paid by the parties to each other, the receipt and sufficiency 
whereof is hereby acknowledged, NSH and Flanagan hereby mutually and expressly agree to add the 
following sections to the Contract heretofore executed and delivered by them: 
 
XII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS 
 
 NSH Corp. and Flanagan Contracting, LLC are both independent contractors for purposes of this 
Contract as amended.  Nothing contained in the Contract as hereby amended shall be construed to mean 
that said NSH and/or Flanagan Contracting, LLC are the servants, agents or employees of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
XIII. PERMITS, LAWS, CODES AND ORDINANCES 
  
 NSH and Flanagan will give all notices required by and comply with applicable laws, ordinances 
and codes of the local, state and federal governments in the performance of the work described in the 
Contract as amended hereby. 
 
XIV. WORKER’S COMPENSATION 
 
 Flanagan shall carry Worker’s Compensation insurance for all of its employees and those of its 
subcontractors engaged in the work at the site in accordance with the State of Alabama Worker’s 
Compensation Law.  



Addendum to Contract 
page 2 
 
 
 
XV. LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
 Flanagan shall carry Manufacturer’s and Contractor’s Public Liability Insurance with limits of 
Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00), per person, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), 
per occurrence, to cover and protect the City and Flanagan and its subcontractors against claims or 
injury to or death of one or more than one person because of accidents which may occur or result from 
operations under the Contract as amended.  The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama shall be added as “an 
additional insured” to the general comprehensive liability insurance policy of Flanagan.   
 
XVI. INDEMNITY 
 
 Flanagan shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, its Mayor, City 
Manager, individual members of the City Council, servants, agents, employees or representatives from 
any and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, causes of action, liabilities of action, lawsuits, 
liabilities and damages arising out of or resulting from property damage, personal injury and/or death 
suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person as a result for work performed by the Flanagan 
under this Contract as amended. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NSH Corp. and Flanagan Contracting, LLC have caused this 
Addendum to Contract to be executed by their duly authorized officers and their respective seals to be 
affixed hereto on the date hereinabove written. 
 
     NSH CORP., an Alabama corporation 
 
 
     By_____________________________________________  
      Tyler Belcher 
      Vice President-Custom Homes Division 
 
WITNESSED 
 
 
By____________________________________ 
 
     FLANAGAN CONTRACTING, LLC 
      
 
     By_____________________________________________ 
      Michael L. Flanagan, Jr. 
      President 
WITNESSED 
 
 
By_____________________________________ 



Addendum to Contract 
page 3 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 
that Tyler Belcher, whose name as Vice President-Custom Homes Division of NSH Corp, an Alabama 
corporation, is signed to the foregoing Addendum to Contract and who is known to me, acknowledged 
before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such officer and with 
full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said NSH Corp. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of February, 2013. 
 
 
     ________________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby certify 
that Michael L. Flanagan, Jr., whose name as President of Flanagan Contracting, LLC, an Alabama 
limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing Addendum to Contract and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such 
officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said Flanagan 
Contracting, LLC. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of February, 2013. 
 
 
     ________________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4412 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT TO ESTABLISH THE HARDWARE 
AND SOFTWARE FOR A “STAND-ALONE” SYSTEM AFTER 
SEPARATION FROM HOMEWOOD 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with New World Systems in order to establish the hardware and software needed to 

create a “stand-alone” system after separation from the City of Homewood at a cost not 

to exceed $167,500.00; and 

2. A Copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4412 as if written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4412 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of February, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





















































RESOLUTION NUMBER 4413 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE FIVE (5) CHEVROLET TAHOES FOR THE NEW SCHOOL 
RESOURCE OFFICERS (SRO’S) 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase five (5) new Chevrolet Tahoes for 

new School Resource Officers (SRO’s) in an amount not to exceed $132,253.00; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase and install emergency equipment on 

said vehicles at a cost not to exceed $26,935.00; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4413 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 







RESOLUTION NUMBER 4415 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXCUTE AN AGREEMNT WITH STEPHEN R. MONK, OF 
BRADLEY, ARANT, BOULT, CUMMINGS, LLP 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with 

Stephen R. Monk of the law firm Bradley, Arant, Boult Cummings LLP for legal services 

for the purchase and development of the property located at 1034 Montgomery Highway 

as a new municipal complex; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4415 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4415 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragzoa, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 















Ordinance Number 2437 
Page 1 

 

 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2437 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PURCHASING AND 
CLOSING OF THE SALE OF REAL ESTATE. 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2437 is considered, approved, enacted and 

adopted on this the 11th day of March, 2013 to amend Ordinance Number 2420 adopted 

and approved on November 5, 2013 in its entirety as follows: 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, municipalities in Alabama have the legal authority to acquire real 

estate by purchase pursuant to Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) finds and determines that the purchase by 

the City of the hereinafter described real property (the “Property”) will promote the 

health, safety and general welfare of the City; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “Contracts entered into by a municipality shall be in writing, 
signed and executed in the name of the city or town by the officers 
authorized to make the same and by the party contracting.  In cases not 
otherwise directed by law or ordinance, such contracts shall be entered 
into and executed by the mayor in the name of the city or town and all 
obligations for the payment of money by the municipality, except for 
bonds and interest coupons, shall be attested by the clerk.  This section 
shall not be construed to cover purchases for the ordinary needs of the 
municipality;” and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. PROMOTION OF PUBLIC WELFARE:  The City Council (the “City 

Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) 

finds and determines that the purchase by the City of the hereinafter described real 

property and improvements (the “Property”) will promote the health, safety and general 

welfare of the City. 



Ordinance Number 2437 
Page 2 

 

 2

 2. CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE:  The purchasing 

and closing of the sale of the Property shall be completed all in accordance with the 

terms, provisions, conditions and limitations of a written Real Estate Sales Contract (the 

“Contract”) negotiated by the City Manager and City Attorney and ultimately considered 

for acceptance and approval by the City Council at this regularly scheduled public 

meeting. 

 3. TERMS OF CONTRACT:  The written Real Estate Sales Contract 

specifically includes, but not be limited to, the following terms, provisions, conditions 

and limitations: 

  A. SELLER:  Southpace Properties, Inc. 

  B. PURCHASER:  The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal 

corporation. 

  C. PURCHASE PRICE:  One Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand and 

No/100 Dollars ($1,150,000.00). 

  D. EARNEST MONEY:  None. 

  E. PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE:  In cash at closing. 

  F. THE PROPERTY: 

   1. Street Address:  1034 Montgomery Highway. 

   2. Located In:  Vestavia Hills Shopping Center. 

   3. Formerly Occupied By:  Food World Grocery Store. 

   4. Map of Property:  Attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

   5. Legal Description:  To be furnished by Seller upon 

completion of survey. 

   6. Curtilage:  The Property includes the present “Big Box” 

building and the real estate surrounding it as shown on the survey. 

  G. TITLE INSURANCE:  To be furnished by Seller at Seller’s expense. 

  H. SURVEY:  To be furnished by Seller at Seller’s expense. 

  I. USE OF PROPERTY:  Municipal Center, City Hall or other 

municipal purposes determined by the City.  Seller shall warrant to City in writing that 

the Property can be used for said purposes. 

  J. CONDITION OF PROPERTY:  “As is” condition with all faults. 



Ordinance Number 2437 
Page 3 

 

 3

  K. PARKING SPACES:  Seller shall provide perpetual cross parking 

easements to the extent that there shall be one parking space per 200 square feet in the 

building on the property. 

  L. CONVEYANCE:  By Warranty Deed. 

  M. BROKER COMMISSION:  None. 

  N. ATTORNEY FEES:  Each party shall pay its own attorney fees for 

legal services rendered in connection with the sale, purchase and closing. 

  O. RESURVEY:  To be completed by both Seller and Purchaser. 

  P. OPERATING AGREEMENT (REGARDING ACCESS, 

PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING): 

   1. Vestavia Plaza, LLC:  60% 

   2. City of Vestavia Hills: 40% 

  Q. UTILITIES: Vestavia Plaza, LLC will cooperate with City 

regarding installation of new connections for: 

   1. Sewer. 

   2. Water. 

   3. Utility. 

  R. CONTINGENCY: 

   1. Subdivision approval. 

  S. EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY: Vestavia Plaza, LLC 

will grant to City any and all easements and rights of way for the maintenance and 

installation of utilities. 

  T. RIGHT OF REFUSAL: Seller grants to Purchaser a right of 

first refusal to purchase the remaining property of Seller lying south and east of Subject 

Property.  In the event Seller receives a bona fide offer for the purchase of Seller’s 

remaining property, Seller shall immediately provide a true and correct copy of any such 

offer to Purchaser, and Purchaser shall have a period of ten business days from receipt of 

such offer to accept the purchaser Seller’s remaining property on the same terms and 

conditions as are contained in the offer. 

  U. LENDER APPROVAL:  Lender shall furnish to the City in 

writing: 



Ordinance Number 2437 
Page 4 

 

 4

   1. That is approves the sale of the property to the City; and 

   2. That there is no timeline or deadline whatseoever for the 

City to begin construction on any improvement on the property; and 

   3. The City may develop and use the property for public 

purposes, specifically including but not limited to a new City Hall; and 

   4. City may sell the property to another party. 

 5. CONTRACT:  A copy of the proposed contract is attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2437 as though written fully therein. 

 9. POSTING OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2437:  If the City Council 

approves, enacts and adopts Ordinance Number 2437, as amended, then in such event, 

said Ordinance shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City as required by 

Title 11-45-8(b)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 10. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2437:  Ordinance 

Number 2437 shall become effective five (5) days after posting in accordance with Title 

11-45-8(3), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 11. CLOSING DATE:  The Real Estate Sales Contract shall be closed after 

the effective date of Ordinance Number 2437 on a date mutually agreed upon by Seller 

and Purchaser. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, this the 11th day of March, 

2013. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2437 
Page 5 

 

 5

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2437 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 11th day of March, 2013 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4416 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE 
ADDITIONAL INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF HEALTHY WAY/PATCHWORK BRIDGE AND INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 14, 2012, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4297 to authorize Goodwyn, Mills and Cawood to do 

inspection services for the construction of the Healthy Way/Patchwork Bridge and Intersection 

Improvements at a cost not to exceed $41,600.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer in a memorandum dated February 20, 2013 to the City 

Manager (copy attached) cited construction delays which have resulted in the need of additional 

inspection services in an amount estimated at $15,000.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the request from the City Engineer and has 

recommended approval of said additional inspection services. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to approve additional inspection services as 

detailed in the attached memorandum in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4416 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragzoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 













RESOLUTION NUMBER 4417 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL 
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURES ON THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3363 MOUNTAINSIDE ROAD 

 
 WHEREAS, on October 8, 2012, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills adopted 

and approved Resolution Number 4335 to declare the structures on the property located at 3363 

Mountainside Drive and to order the demolition of said structures; and 

 WHEREAS, the Building Safety Official has received proposals for demolition as well 

as the removal and mitigation of known asbestos materials within the structure and has detailed 

said proposals in a memorandum to the City Manager dated February 20, 2013; a copy of which 

is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4417 as if written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official has reviewed the proposals and recommended the 

acceptance of Slate Barganier Building for the demolition of the structure at a cost not to exceed 

$9,850.00 and the acceptance of the proposal from Lakeshore Environmental Contractors for 

mitigation and removal of known asbestos materials at a cost not to exceed $4,250.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the recommendations of the Building 

Safety Official and has recommended approval. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions and execute all documents 

necessary to demolish and remove the structures on the property located at 3353 

Mountainside Road at a total cost not to exceed $14,100.00; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4417 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







RESOLUTION NUMBER 4418 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE METAL DETECTORS FOR MUNICIPAL COURT AND TO 
RETAIN TWO SECURITY OFFICERS FOR THE SECURITY OF 
PERSONS ENTERING MUNICIPAL COURT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept a quote from Shelsky Metal Detectors 

Sales and Service, LLC for the purchase of a walk-through metal detector, two handheld 

wands and equipment to be used with the metal detectors for scanning and security of 

individuals entering into Municipal Court; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to retain two security guards to utilize the metal 

detectors for security of individuals entering into Municipal Court; and 

3. Funding for the metal detectors and the security guards shall be expensed to the Special 

Judicial Fund; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4418 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
     Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
     Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Tommy Spina <tommyspina@bellsouth.net>
Sent: Monday, February 18, 2013 1:45 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: Re: court security

Please go forward with your plan  
 
Tommy Spina 
1330 21st Way South 
Birmingham , Al. 35205 
205.939.1330 (Off) 
205.933.0101 (Fax) 
tommy@tommyspina.com 
tommyspina.com 
 
 
On Feb 18, 2013, at 12:09 PM, "Rebecca Leavings" <city.clerk@ci.vestaviahills.al.us> wrote: 

Dear Judge Spina, 
  
I am prepared to bring the request for Court security to the Council as first read Monday 
and then action on the 11th of March.   
  
The plan is to purchase a walk-through medal detector with two wands to set up in the 
lobby on court day.  I will have two employees of Security Engineers manning the 
detectors and, if there is a questionable entry, these guys will consult with a Court bailiff 
to determine entry.  These guards are not armed. 
  
The building entrances will be locked down to prevent any entry from the general public 
other than the primary front entry.  A sign will be posted to show anyone entering is 
subject to search. 
  
In order to bring this forward, I need written confirmation that you are in support or 
whether or not you have any concerns or comments. 
  
Thanks!!! 
  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills AL  35216 
(205) 978-0184 Phone 
(205) 978-0122 Fax 
city.clerk@ci.vestaviahills.al.us 
  
  










	2013_0225CC_A
	2013_0211CC_M
	Resolution 4405
	Resolution 4406
	Resolution 4407
	Ordinance 2434
	Resolution 4408
	Resolution 4410
	Resolution 4411
	Resolution 4414
	Ordinance 2435
	Ordinance 2436
	Resolution 4412
	Resolution 4413
	Resolution 4415
	Ordinance 2437
	Resolution 4416
	Resolution 4417
	Resolution 4418



